

consent of the owner or occupant;

(2) Remove or disturb any “solid waste”, “green waste”, or recyclable materials” as defined herein from the place where the same has been placed for collection;

(3) Collect or haul away any “solid waste”, “green waste”, or “recyclable materials” as defined herein from the place where the same has been placed for collection;

(4) Transport any “solid waste”, “green waste”, or “recyclable materials” as defined herein from the place where the same has been placed for collection.

B. It shall be unlawful for any person, other than Contractor, **or an independent contractor as specified herein, or an owner or occupant as specified in Section 6 herein**, to remove or convey, or cause or permit to be removed or conveyed, any “solid waste”, “recyclable materials”, or “green waste” as defined herein upon or along any public sidewalk, highway, street, boulevard, court, way or alley within the District, or engage in the business of trash collection, removal and disposal within the District, including the collection and disposal of “solid waste”, “recyclable materials”, or “green waste” as defined herein.

**Commented [CD3]:** Remove “or an independent contractor as specified herein,

C. It shall be unlawful for any person, other than Contractor, **or an independent contractor as specified herein, or an owner or occupant as specified in Section 6 herein**, to place, store, dispose, or deposit, or cause or permit to be placed, stored, disposed, or deposited, any “solid waste”, “recyclable materials”, or “green waste” as defined herein upon or along any public **sidewalk, highway, street, boulevard,** court, way or alley within the District, or engage in the business of trash collection, removal and disposal within the District, including the collection and disposal of “solid waste”, “recyclable materials”, or “green waste” as defined herein.

**Commented [CD4]:** Remove “or an independent contractor as specified herein,

**Commented [CD5]:** Add “or private real property”

D. A violation of these provisions shall be a misdemeanor punishable by imprisonment in the county jail for no more than thirty (30) days, or by a fine of not more than Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00), or by both such fine and imprisonment.

E. Where a District employee determines that a person is unlawfully collecting or interfering with the collection of solid waste or recyclables under these provisions, that employee may either notify the appropriate authorities or issue a warning to the offender on a form drafted and approved by the District. Such form will clearly notify the offender of the District’s authority, the nature of the offense, and the possibility of future criminal action.

### **Section 15. Receptacles to be Kept Clean.**

Owners and occupants shall keep trash containers in a clean and sanitary condition.